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Category QUESTION ANSWER
BOA Administration When is the 4th Domain (Plans & Operations) going to be 

announced?
The EAGLE requirements do not include plans and operations as a separate requirement.

BOA Administration Will this presentation and the attendance roster be emailed to 
BOA Holders?

The presentation slides and Q&As will be posted to the EAGLE website. The Government 
will also post a list of the BOA Holders who were represented at the BOA Holder Meeting, 
but an individual attendance roster will not be provided.

BOA Administration Is there a place that lists all 112 BOA Holders with the complete 
team members?

No, the EAGLE Website provides a list of all BOA Holders, however, a list with the BOA 
Holders and teammates will not be provided.

BOA Administration DCAA Audits - You had an Audit conducted on our company.  
We received draft results from DCAA but they have indicated you 
must provide us with a final approved copy.  When can I expect to 
receive a copy?

A final approved audit can be received upon request by the contractor to the contracting 
office.

BOA Administration Why is keeping the EAGLE office aware of our business size 
important? We were under the impression that this [is] only 
important at the solicitation response level for specific contracts. 
Isn't this take care of under the Certs & Reps for each solicitation?

Business size is important on the Basic Ordering Agreement (BOA) instrument in addition to 
the Task Order Request for Proposals (RFPS). While Offerors need to provide their Certs & 
Reps for each Task Order solicitation, it is equally important they provide updated business 
size information that is relevant to their executed BOA.

BOA Administration Regarding Prime/Sub novations, it is implied we can change when 
we want rather than [during] annual change? And also that this is 
less formal? Please explain.

Novations as a result of FAR 42.1204 - Applicability of Novation Agreements, still require 
formal processing as outlined in the FAR; however, these will be processed on a case-by-case 
basis either during or outside of the annual opening as appropriate. 

For those situations where the change is in name only, the process requirements at FAR 
42.1205 -- Agreement to Recognize Contractors Change of Name, applies to the BOA 
Holder's executed BOA instrument and may be processed at any time. 

For occurrences where a BOA Holder's BOA Attachment 0002 teammate had a change-in-
name-only,  an e-mail should be sent to the BOA admin address. This email should provide 
the BOA Holder's name, BOA #, the affected teammate's current name and CAGE, as well as 
the affected teammate's new name and CAGE (note, a CAGE should not have changed as the 
result of a change-in-name-only action). 

BOA Administration If you have 10 original teammates and add 2 more during the 
additions process, do you need a technical evaluation on the two 
additional?

No, only the past performance is evaluated on the two additions. 

BOA Administration During the revision phase, can you drop or add? What about 
during the addition phase?

During the revision process, you may drop or add up to 10 base teammates to show capability. 
You may also replace a team member with a new team member.  However, when revising your 
organizational capability team structure, please be aware that a technical review of the 
changes will be performed.  All changes to the organizational capability team must be 
considered acceptable technically and past performance reviewed before the Government will 
approve the change.  During the addition process, you may add teammates to enhance your 
capability but you must already have those organizational capabilities in your base of 10 
teammates.

BOA Administration So, is it limited to 10 teammates or 10 Past Performances? You are limited to 10 base teammates and each one must have a reference. Attachment 0002 
has been modified to allow for additional teammates during the addition process. 
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BOA Administration Which attachment is for the teammate list? The teammate list for a companies Basic Ordering Agreement (BOA) is BOA Attachment 

0002 - Team Arrangment.
Communications The website has been helpful in communicating cursory EAGLE 

related information, however, it would be more beneficial if all 
documents and more detailed information is provided including 
Incumbent information, Union specifics, etc.  Will the Gov’t 
include more background information on the website?

Yes, when it is feasible, we will include more information on the website. 

Communications Would the Government consider providing an award/EN schedule 
on the EAGLE website following submission of Offeror 
proposals. This would help to keep Offerors updated on 
evaluation progress and limit the calls to the contracting office for 
status.

Offerors who propose on a specific Task Order RFP are contacted as appropriate when an 
exchange is to take place. This is true for clarifications, communications, and discussions. 
Regarding Evaluation Notices (EN's), these are Offeror specific so a website approach is not 
feasible. A similar situation would apply to the BOA process as well.

Communications What mechanisms are in place to direct the Government to this 
vehicle?

Other Army organizations are briefed on the EAGLE program up through the General Officer 
level on a continual basis.  In addition, this office and the ASC EAGLE Business Office are 
contacted on a continual basis from other Army organizations requesting information on 
EAGLE.

Communications What process should we follow to introduce the Government to 
this vehicle?

If a Government customer is interested in their requirement falling under EAGLE, they should 
contact the ASC EAGLE Business Office to inquire about the possiblity of their requirement 
falling under an EAGLE task order.  . 

Small Business The APS-5 TO had no requirement for the utilization of Small 
Business.  (1) Will the lack of a small business utilization 
requirement be true for all OCONUS TOs? 

Each Task Order RFP stands alone and will contain its own terms and conditions.  FAR Part 
19 does not apply to OCONUS requirements.  However, the Government will review each 
requirement for socioeconomic opportunities and include small business participation where 
feasible.

Small Business Are large business exempt from their BOA Small Business Plan 
for OCONUS work?  

Each Task Order RFP stands alone and will contain its own terms and conditions.  Therefore, 
if a Small Business Plan is required, it will be listed in the terms and conditions of the RFP. 

Small Business What has been the Government’s experience so far on challenges 
by small business to convert unrestricted task orders to a small 
business TO using the ”rule of 2”?

Since no EAGLE Task Orders have been awarded to date, there are no experiences to glean 
from thus far.

Small Business Are small business plans meeting goals? Since no EAGLE Task Orders have been awarded to date, there have been no opportunities to 
measure goal achievement.

Small Business Joint Ventures established for the purposes of competing and 
executing work under the EAGLE Program, have no historical 
Small Business Participation (SBP) experience.  Please advise as 
to how that will be evaluated during the source selection process.

A neutral rating will be assigned.

Small Business With several installation bids under the 35.5m annual threshold 
coming out unrestricted/F&O, what is the new analysis decision 
criteria for allocating a bid restricted to SB?

 The $35.5m threshold has not changed. In determining the estimated value of the Task Order, 
the Government determines the average annual amount for the base period and any option 
periods.  If the estimated value of the consolidated Installation Logistics Annual Requirements 
are more than $1M but less than or equal to $35.5M it will be set aside for small business. If 
the estimated average annual requirement  exceeds $35.5M, the Government will apply the 
“Rule of 2” to determine whether the requirement will be solicited as a small business set-
aside or on an unrestricted basis (see BOA Holder Meeting Slide # 27).
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Small Business Can the Government address why there is no Small Business 

requirement associated with the APS-5 Kuwait Task Order?
Each Task Order RFP stands alone and will contain its own terms and conditions.  FAR Part 
19 does not apply to OCONUS requirements.  However, the Government will review each 
requirement for socioeconomic opportunities and include small business participation where 
feasible.

Small Business If an 8a BOA Holder graduates from an 8a can they still pursue an 
8a Set Aside Task Order?

Yes, if they were an 8a before the Task Order Solicitation closed.

Small Business Is it the annual revenue of small business threshold that must be 
$35.5M dollar threshold for a Task Order for a Small Business Set-
Aside, or is it a Small Business standard guideline rolling 3 year 
average of $35.5M to qualify for the Small Business goal?

It is using an average of 3 years

Small Business How do you distinguish if a BOA will be set aside for an 8a or 
Small Business?

We take it you mean a Task Order requirement.  This is based upon EAGLE consolidations. If 
it is currently being performed by an 8a, it will be competed as an 8a.  If it is an 8a, it will stay 
an 8a.  If it was not performed previously by an 8(a) and it is under the $35.5M threshold it 
will be set aside for Small Business.

Step 3 Can the Government advise when task orders that have been in 
Source Selection might be awarded?  

Task Order status will provided at the APBI briefing. 

Step 3 In order to adequately prepare for a contract win/transition, when 
does the government anticipate making an award? Request the 
government publish an estimated award schedule like the estimate 
RFP release list.

At this time, the Government is not anticipating publishing an award schedule.  It is estimated 
that the first EAGLE task order awards will occur prior to the end of this fiscal year.

Step 3 The question cut off period of 10 days prior to submission has 
resulted in the Gov’t having to extend proposal turn in dates.  We 
have recommended that the first round of questions be due NLT 
10 days after RFP release which will allow the Government more 
time to respond to the questions and adjust the RFP accordingly 
without having to extend.  Will the Government revise the 
question and response schedule to reduce RFP schedule delays? 

The Government does not intend to revise the schedule for the submission of Questions. The 
schedule was established so the site visit can be conducted and questions can be submitted 
after the site visit.

Step 3 Joint Ventures established for the purposes of competing and 
executing work under the EAGLE Program may utilize the 
corporate business systems (e.g., Cost Accounting System, 
Purchasing, Property Management, etc.) of the Managing Partner.  
Please advise as to how this will be evaluated during in the source 
selection process.

The offeror's proposal shall follow the terms and conditions of its Joint Venture agreement.  In 
addition, its proposal shall clearly state what corporate business systems are being proposed 
for the performance of the proposed task order contract.  For example, if the JV does not have 
its own established Corporate Business systems, which of the JV partners systems will it be 
using in performance of the contract.    The proposal will be evaluated accordingly.

Step 3 If the prime is not identified as self sufficient - Clarify what 
condition I can invite a subcontractor to perform work with me on 
a BOA. What if I already have an approved teammate that meets 
the socioeconomic goal?

You can invite a subcontractor that is not on the approved teammate list to meet a 
socioeconomic goal in an Unrestricted task order procurement only.

Step 3 If we didn't demonstrate that we meet the functional areas, how 
can I submit myself as a contractor to perform the work?

During the task order level, contractors must demonstrate their capability to meet requirements 
of the RFP.  The prime can make a business decision to propose themselves or their 
teammates.   There may be instances when the prime expanded their capacity/capability, hired 
more people, etc and are not able to perform the work themselves.  If teammates are proposed, 
the Government will verify that the teammate is listed in the Attachment 0002, Team 
Arrangement 



BOA Holder Meeting Question and Answers
May 20, 2013

4

Category QUESTION ANSWER
Step 3 Can you give an estimated date for planning purposes for 

contractors for upcoming RFPs/Task Orders? Currently, the 
EAGLE Website only shows up to September 2013.

Unfortunately, we cannot provide any more information at this time.  When possible, we will 
provide dates for upcoming RFPs/Task Orders. 

Step 3 If a company wins a Task Order, and future logistics requirements 
arise that are not on the original RFP, does that company 
automatically get those requirements?

Yes, that is correct. If a very large requirement arises, we can elect not to exercise that option 
and recompete. Bear in mind that some installations have requirements that would normally 
fall under EAGLE, but are done by other services (i.e., Navy). In these situations they would 
not automatically fall under EAGLE  - such as in the case for the requirements at Joint Base 
Langley Eustis (JBLE) and Joint Expeditionary Base Little Creek Story (JBLCS). 

Step 3 When is the first award coming out from this program? The first award is anticipated prior to the end of the Fiscal Year.
Step 3 Have you considered a draft RFP or L&M be released to the 

contractor?
When its feasible we will be issuing draft RFPs for industry review.

Step 3 The deadline for proposals constantly changes, we have been told 
we submitted a question too late only to have the deadline for 
proposals extended a day later, why do we not get our question 
answered then?

Questions received prior to closing will be answered as best as possible. Duplicate questions 
will not be answered. If the RFP closing date is extended, it does not affect the deadline for 
submission of questions.  Only if the RFP close is extended within 10 days of the original RFP 
close date will we re-open for questions if a decision is made to do so.  We strive to answer all 
questions unless it is a duplicate,  that is why it is important you search through the Q&As to 
see if your question is answered.  Your question may not have exactly the same wording but it 
may be seeking the same answer as another question posted.  

Step 3 RFP Draft - will you release one? When its feasible we will be issuing draft RFPs for industry review.
Step 3 If we got staffing and staffing/labor mix, then we wouldn’t have 

to worry about the workload data.
We are not considering providing the staffing/labor mix at this time.

Step 3 What is trade off? The trade off evaluation is explained in the task order RFP.    A confidence interval is 
developed in evaluating the past performance rating.  The Past Performance Factor is 
significantly more important than Cost/Price Factor. The Cost/Price Factor is more important 
than Small Business Participation.  There is no tradeoff on technical.

Step 3 Is there a general weighting between Step 2 & Step 3? Step 2 is rated acceptable or unacceptable.   Step 3 is rated using a confdence rating scale.   
These are independent evaluations done at each step.   In Step 3 only the proposed teammates 
and subs are evaluated, not the entire Step 2 BOA team.  

Step 3 What is the criteria used for weighting price and past 
performance?

The Government will make a best value determination that is specific to each individual task 
order.

Step 3 Will the Government consider expanding to more than one 
additional reference for Past Performance BOA Step 3?

The Government may consider expanding this requirement.

Step 3 Can talk about criteria for highest competitive rating - how is 
performance criteria established?

The Government will make a best value determination that is specific to each individual task 
order.

Step 3 Is there a situation where the incumbent is exempt from 
submission of inventory?

We would look at each scenario, but generally the incumbent would be required to submit the 
information.

Step 3 Can we have more specifics about each opportunity? As an 
example, if there is a CBA - who are the incumbents?

The incumbent contractor & contract number are provided in Section A of the RFP. CBA 
information, when applicable, will be provided with draft PWS and workload data for 
industry review when feasible.  
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Step 3 This agreement states you may require Secret Clearance. Will you 

complete a DD254 Block 9 for EAGLE? If we don't maintain this 
our clearance can take 1 year to re-instate (so we've been told). 
This would limit your competition.

Facility clearances are determined at an installation level. Applying a DD254 on the BOA 
level for the EAGLE program is not a feasible approach to providing applicable security 
guidance.

Step 3 Can I propose myself if I've been approved for only one 
organizational capability?

See Briefing slide #21

Step 3 Do you have to use an approved teammate? An Offeror, small or large, may propose multiple subcontractors in Step Two that possess 
similar capabilities.  If the Offeror’s approach is considered acceptable in Step Two, the 
Offeror will receive an executed BOA.  When the Offeror submits a proposal in Step Three, it 
must propose the use of an approved subcontractor. Offerors, small and large, will determine 
which approved subcontractor it will use in Step Three.  Offerors are NOT required to 
propose ALL subcontractors approved during Step Two.  However, if they do propose the use 
of subcontractors, it MUST use its approved team members as listed in its BOA.  

Step 3 Someone who is adept in Maintenance, Supply, and 
Transportation and the prime meets Scenario 3 (Slide 17) but 
wants to use a subcontractor because of pricing concerns, is that 
an option?

In scenario 3, the BOA Holder did not demonstrate organizational capability without the 
reliance of teammates in ALL functional areas.  Therefore, when submitting a proposal in Step 
3, the BOA Holder may only propose itself and/or the approved teammates for ALL functional 
areas.  The exception is to meet socioeconomic goals.  There is not an excpetion for pricing 
concerns

Step 3 If you extend date for proposals, doesn't it extend date for 
questions if it changed information contained in the Amendment?

Any information changed or if the due date is changed would be identified in the applicable 
amendment.   An amendment does not necessarily extend the date for questions, unless the 
amendment specifically provides for an extended date for the Government to receive 
questions.  Questions often have a different due date than proposals. If the question deadline 
has been extended, the amendment will indicate the new due date.

Step 3 The site visit and workload data are tightly intertwined together, it 
is nice to know how many feet each building is apart and to get 
the square footage but just driving by a building on a site visit 
doesn’t do me a lot of good without good workload data to form 
my proposal.  How are you going to improve the workload data?

Workload data is the best that is available at the time PPI is put together.  The site visit 
supplements the workload data by giving you a sense of the "lay of the land" to provide more 
understanding of what it will take to fulfill the requirement.  The Government is taking steps 
to improve workload data on future requirements.

Step 3 Clarify the evaluation method. i.e. Best Value, LPTA, Trade Off The technical is evaluated acceptable/unacceptable, then we evaluate cost, past performance, 
and on unrestricted task orders, small business participation on a trade off basis.

Step 3 The mandatory minimum staffing that is in the RFP - is it the 
IGE?

The IGE is different. The IGE is used for personnel. The IGCE is used for costs. It is given to 
the PCO before solicitation issued. It is used to compare prices. It could have been what the 
past pricing was based on service contract act, reasonable G & A, overhead rates, etc. The 
IGE is filed with PCO based on minimum staffing.

Step 3 So the chart indicates references must be recent (within 5 years) - 
does that mean I will have to submit a new reference in Step 3?

Yes, if it is older than 5 years. Offeror's who lack recent contracts may be assigned a 'neutral' 
rating IAW FAR/DFARs/policy.

Step 3 Will the government continue evaluating the magnitude dollar 
value for provided references? 

Yes, we will continue to evaluate references based on the magnitude and complexity criteria in 
the solicitation. Always look at Section M to determine the evaluation criteria.
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Step 3 - Past 
Performance

If the Prime submits themselves for a function they do not have 
past performance themselves, does that have the potential to lower 
your evaluation score for past performance?

Past Performance confidence ratings are assessed in the Step Three Task Order RFP process. 
It is possible that an Offeror's decision to propose themselves with no past performance 
history may affect their confidence rating. 

Step 3 - Past 
Performance

Performance ratings - what is the performance ratings? The performance ratings will be provided in each task order.  The definitions that are provided 
are defined in the DoD Source Selection guide

Step 3 - Past 
Performance

How do we know what we have been rated? You can request a debriefing to find out what you have been rated. Each Task Order stands on 
its own.

Step 3 - Past 
Performance

If a prime/sub rated gets a low rating, it would be good for the 
BOA Holder to know because it costs a large amount of money to 
attempt to go after a Task Order. 

We look at the proposal, teammates, and subcontractors. We evaluate each reference and Task 
Order separately.  During discussions or debriefings, primes will be informed of its past 
performance weaknesses.

Step 3 - Past 
Performance

PPIRS Rating - How is it being used? PPIRS is used for both positive and negative past performance. No weighted score is given. 
The PPIRS rating assists us with determining an acceptable or an unacceptable rating (as 
performed in Step 2) - See BOA Holder Meeting Slide # 47, as well as a confidence rating in 
Step 3.

Step 3 - Past 
Performance

If subs or teammates are performing critical requirements, are they 
being evaluating past performance?

We removed language on critical requirements so only subs/teammates performing  20% or 
more of the work are evaluated.

Step 3 - Past 
Performance

If some references are provided in Step 2, they may be different 
dollar values than the requirements in Step 3. Why don't you ask 
for dollar values in Step 2?.

In the first and second BOA process, the Government did not request dollar values.  As a 
result, the Government initiated the Past Performance data call with all the BOA Holders to 
obtain this information for those past performance references that were provided in the first 
and second BOA RFP proposals.  Moving forward, the Government will be requesting dollar 
values for past performance references in the BOA Step 2 process.

Step 3 - Past 
Performance

For past participation, we used to submit a form 294 or 295. 
Based on subcontract value, which seems to contradict what is 
asked for by the government. The government asks for the total 
contract value.

The Government is requesting offerors report its subcontracting goals/participation against 
total contract value.  The Government acknowledges that the information presented on your 
294 and 295 isn't reported against total contract value, however, the forms do include a 
column where this information can be provided.   Therefore, if an offeror chooses to submit a 
form 294 or 295 with its proposal, it will need to ensure that the 294/295 forms provided 
include the goals/% converted to show as a percentage against the total contract value for 
Government evaluation purposes.  If an offeror only fills in the column for total subcontract 
value, then the Past Small Business Participation (Realism) portion of the offerors proposal 
will not be evaluated. 

Step 3 - Pricing What steps is the government taking to prevent low-ball bidders 
from winning awards?

When contracting on a cost-reimbursement basis, evaluations will include a cost realism 
analysis to determine whether the estimated proposed cost elements are realistic for the work 
to be performed, as required by FAR 15.305.  As part of the cost evaluation, proposals are 
also reviewed to identify any Unbalanced Pricing. In accordance with FAR 15.404-1(g), 
Unbalanced Pricing, a proposal may be rejected if the Contracting Officer determines the lack 
of balance poses an unacceptable risk to the Government.  In addition, the Firm Fixed Price  
Proposals will be evaluated using price analysis IAW FAR 15.404-1, Proposal Analysis 
Techniques.

Step 3 - Pricing Should the subcontractors submit an attachment 5? Attachment 0005 is a summary of the cost that the prime contractor is required to submit.  
However, all subcontractors need to submit the required cost information per the solicitation 
requirements.
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Step 3 - Pricing In order to simplify the review process for the Army, would the 

Army consider putting together a template to standardize pricing, 
so that there is consistency through source selection?

Please follow FAR Table 15-2 for the standard requirements for pricing proposals.

Step 3 - Pricing Transition Plan - how do you compare nonincumbent versus 
incumbent plan and costs?

Each offeror is responsible for proposing an acceptable approach to Transition-In.  Each 
proposal is independently evaluated in accordance with the solicitation evaluation criteria.  

Step 3 - Pricing We have some concerns with attachment 0005 autopopulating 
when our subs complete it.

It was intended for primes to complete, not subs. Subs only submit summaries.

Step 3 - Technical The EAGLE website has the estimated release dates for upcoming 
solicitations.  For planning purposes it would be helpful to have a 
bit of pre-solicitation information before it comes out.  Such as, 
but not limited to, the PWS, incumbent, and contract number.  Is 
this a possibility for future solicitation releases?  

The EAGLE contracting office will provide task order performance work statements and 
supporting technical exhibits/workload data for industry comments prior to the RFP release, 
when the timeline allows.

Step 3 - Technical Are all 48 large business EAGLE BOA holders considered equal 
in capability, or are there project-specific requirements in each 
task order that will make some large BOA holders unqualified for 
a specific task order?

All BOA Holders received a BOA as a result of an evaluation against specific criteria in the 
BOA RFP.  When BOA Holders compete for task orders, they will be evaluated against the 
criteria specific to that task order.

Step 3 - Technical Is the Eagle Contracting Team going to standardize Workload 
Data across all BOA Task Orders?  To date it has been 
inconsistent and has not used SAMS-E for Annual Maintenance 
Man-hours by shop Section.

It is the Government's intent to eventually provide Workload Data in a standardized format as 
appropriate.  However, each Task Order is unique and could have exclusive Workload Data 
specific to the Task Order location.  

Step 3 - Technical What will RICC do to address the amount of knowledge and 
therefore competitive advantage that an incumbent will have with 
how many work orders and the man-hours required from specific 
levels of capability of maintenance personnel? When a non-
incumbent tries to guess how many people are required to 
complete an unknown amount of work then an incumbent has an 
unfair advantage? A non incumbent may have a much better 
approach (innovation) then the incumbent but their proposal will 
be significantly different and much harder to evaluate. What is the 
RICC doing to address this issue?

Workload data is provided to all BOA Holders, providing the best information that the 
Government has available.  As these are consolidated requirements, the incumbent contractor 
is not performing the same work scenario as what is expected in EAGLE, therefore, does not 
possess an unfair advantage due to the fact that they are the incumbent. It is up to each Offeror 
to propose its best approach IAW the RFP.

Step 3 - Technical Step 3 Task Order Process - Consider tying the release of the draft 
PWS with a site visit.  Coupled with an opportunity to submit 
question could reduce time line adjustments required to answer 
uniformed questions.

The Government is looking at the site visit process and will take the industry 
recommendations/feedback into consideration to improve this process.

Step 3 - Technical Would ASC consider giving BOA Holders both FTEs and staff 
mix (labor categories) on EAGLE Task Order?

This is currently not under consideration.
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Step 3 - Technical When you send out the draft PWS and workload data you 

specifically state “no questions”, how are we supposed to get 
information we need?

As part of the draft RFP's we plan to send out, we will not be answering any questions 
submitted regarding the draft RFP. Our goal is for you to review the draft documents and 
provide us feedback on how we can improve the information to provide it in a format that will 
make your proposal easier to develop.  Any improvements or suggestions made on the draft 
RFP will be considered before a final RFP is issued.

Step 3 - Technical Shouldn’t the PWS for each task order be the same? We have different sections to capture each overarching requirement.  The overarching 
requirements are fairly standard across the board.  There will be different requirements at each 
local level. We break the PWS down into sections. Section 5 is specific for each installation 
and provides information as to the activities performed by the specific installation. The 
number scheme is standardized for ease of reference for industry. We are moving in the 
direction of having standardized data, but we are not quite there yet. We would appreciate 
feedback from industry when documents are released.

Step 3 - Technical In past Task Orders, you disclosed minimum staffing levels, will 
the Government release these minimum levels in Section L in the 
future?

We are making changes as we move along this process. We are refining the process, so it is 
easier to understand and submit. We are going to make a change to the technical factor 
submission and evaluation requirements,  but cannot guarantee it will include minimum 
staffing levels.  

Step 3 - Technical We need the man hours, work hours, and number of FTEs per 
labor category.  Why don’t you give us this information?

Labor categories and man hours are the answer to a work load problem.  The 
workload data is provided, and the the technical evaluation assesses how a contractor 
intends to organize and staff to accomplish the workload. 

Step 3 - Technical You mentioned earlier the BOE was no good on a past task order, 
can you provide an example?

The Government requested the BOE in an attempt to gain some insight on how contractors 
developed their staffing plan.  After reviewing BOEs the EBO has determined that the BOE 
adds no value to the technical evaluation process and will be eliminated from future RFPs. 

Step 3 - Technical The Government provides minimum staffing. They may or may 
not provide BOE, where does this support innovation?

The minimum staffing is an IGE developed by experts on the mission of the installation 
requirement/workload. It is our Tech. experts opinion that staffing below this level constitutes 
an unacceptable risk to the mission.  Innovative proposals which fully explain how a 
contractor can reduce staffing and still accomplish the mission without risk will be evaluated 
for feasability.  

Step 3 - Technical If you are providing a minimum staffing level, where is innovation 
in a proposal considered in the evaluation process?

The minimum staffing is an IGE developed by experts on the mission of the installation 
requirement/workload. It is our Tech. experts opinion that staffing below this level constitutes 
an unacceptable risk to the mission.  Innovative proposals which fully explain how a 
contractor can reduce staffing and still accomplish the mission without risk will be evaluated 
for feasability.  

Step 3 - Technical The BOE is supposed to explain our methodology in creating our 
staffing proposal.  Are you assessing our ability to develop a 
staffing solution or just our ability to match the minimum staffing 
requirement?

The Government requested the BOE in an attempt to gain some insight on how contractors 
developed their staffing plan.  After reviewing BOEs the EBO has determined that the BOE 
adds no value to the technical evaluation process and will be eliminated from future RFPs. 

Step 3 - Technical If the offeror’s staffing number doesn't match what the 
government is looking for, it could just meant the information 
given to the offeror is bad.  Are you evaluating our ability to 
propose a staffing solution or to just get the “right answer” the 
government is looking for?

Government Tecnical experts develop a minimum staffing level estimate based on the 
workload date in the RFP. Contractors are to develop a staffing level based on the 
same information and they are assessed to determine acceptability.   
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Step 3 - Technical Are there any technical trade offs? No, you are either acceptable or unacceptable.
Step 3 - Technical If we develop process in BOE, would you throw us out?   The Government requested the BOE in an attempt to gain some insight on how contractors 

developed their staffing plan.  After reviewing BOEs the EBO has determined that the BOE 
adds little value to the technical evaluation process and will be eliminated from future RFPs. 

Step 3 - Technical If a Contractor doesn’t operate PBUSE or handle hand receipts, 
how are they evaluated?  

Some missions under EAGLE such as PDTE/LBE require the contractor to operate PBUSE.  
The inability or lack of experience operating PBUSE would be considered a deficiency, 
depending on the specific criteria of the RFP. 

Step 3 - Technical Is the workload data you use the same as what is given to us? Yes.

Step Two Process Can the Government advise when additional opportunities will be 
identified and added to the Estimated RFP Dates that are on the 
Eagle Website currently?

Future opportunities will be posted to the EAGLE Website once they are synopsized in 
FEDBIZOPPS.  It is anticipated that Year 2 requirements will be synopsized in the September 
timeframe.

Step Two Process The latest estimated release date for a future RFP is 21 Aug (111 
days out), as Industry generally begins formal capture efforts up to 
a year in advance, when does the government anticipate 
expanding the estimated RFP schedule?

The RFP schedule will be updated as new requirements are synopsized.  Future requirements 
will provided at APBI, if available.

Step Two Process When will the requests for additions to teams be responded to? The Government is  currently evaluating the proposed additions/revisions from our current 
BOA Holders.  It is anticipated these will be completed in the mid to end of June timeframe..

Step Two Process Is the EAGLE team considering adding any stipulations for NON-
EAGLE BOA holders who happen to be the incumbent on any 
particular TO which would allow for them to team with a BOA 
Holder for that particular TO only?

When new requirements are advertised, where the incumbent is a non-BOA holder, it will 
have the opportunity to become a BOA Holder when those requirements are advertised in the 
Step 2 BOA RFP.   BOA Holders will also have the opportunity at that time to change their 
team approach to add the non-BOA Holder incumbent to increase its capacity and capabilities 
to support the new/emerging requirements.

Step Two Process  Is there a single source site that has all the EAGLE Business rules 
consolidated and available?  

All EAGLE Business Rules are contained within each BOA Holder's BOA. Therefore, please 
refer to the BOA for the applicable EAGLE Business Rules.

Step Two Process Do you have or would you consider a provision to accept quick 
turn around task orders from customers, where there is no time to 
hold an open season?

Not at this time.

Step Two Process When will ASC determine the new teams from the open season 
two months ago?

The Government is reviewing all information submitted by all BOA Holders and will notify 
the Offerors when the evaluations are complete.  The Government will be doing so on a rolling 
basis.  It is anticipated that the evaluation and execution of the BOA process will be complete 
mid-late June.

Step Two Process Will ASC acknowledge additions to BOA Team submitted during 
Step 2 Open Season?

ACC will acknowledge the addition via an updated Attachment 0002 Team arrangement to 
the offerors BOA via a BOA modification.   

Step Two Process We put in our request for our additions, when will the 
notification/announcement be sent our for the addition process?

The Government is still evaluating this information. There is a large amount of data to go 
through. As soon as we are able to modify the data and complete the process, we will get it 
completed as soon as possible. It is vital that you respond to any data calls that are requested 
for follow up information. We are working to complete this process hopefully by mid-late 
June. Requirements on BOA 3 will not be issued until additions and/or revisions are 
completed.
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Step Two Process When is the next time the addition window will be open? The annual process is anticipated for completion in September 2013. The BOA RFP will be 

released in October; therefore, the addition window will probably re-open in October instead 
of being open twice in a row September and October.) The last addition closed 20 March 
2013.

Step Two Process Has EAGLE experienced any additional oversight or approval 
requirements that have slowed down the process? Are there 
potential changes in scope, rules, changes in hierarchy that will 
slow down the approval process?

EAGLE has had no changes to its approval process.

Teaming Will the RICC eliminate the current ten-company cap on teams? At this time, the Government is not anticipating changing this requirement.

Teaming  Is there a listing available of BOA Holder Team Members?  
Presently, large IDIQ’s show team members.  Will EAGLE 
provide this information?

A list of BOA Holders is provided on the EAGLE website. The Government will not be 
posting a list of each BOA Holder's Team Members.

Teaming Does the EAGLE Contracting Office have a way of checking to 
ensure company A is attempting to use company B?

The EAGLE Contracting Office will review a contractor's proposal in Step 3 to ensure it is 
proposing approved Teammates IAW its Attachment 0002.

Teaming In the event Company B does not want to participate with 
Company A on a specific task order, how is that information 
provided to the EAGLE Contracting Office?

The EAGLE Contracting Office will review a contractor's proposal in Step 3 to ensure it is 
proposing approved Teammates IAW its Attachment 0002.  It is up to the BOA Holder to 
determine which approved teammates it desires to propose for specific task order.

Teaming Does the EAGLE Contracting Office intend to advise companies 
listed in the “Approved Subcontractors” paragraph that they have 
indeed been identified to support a named BOA holder in those 
functional areas?

The Government has no privity of contract with BOA Holder teammates/subcontractors. 
Therefore, the Government does not intend to advise companies listed.

Teaming Can an Offeror subcontract on a case-by-case basis to a new 
teammate by offering a 20% work share (Major Sub)?

When submitting a proposal in Step 3, a BOA Holder who demonstrated organizational 
capability without the reliance of teammates in ALL functional areas may propose itself 
and/or subcontractors not previously approved in Attachment 0002, Team Arrangement. (See 
BOA Holder Briefing slide # 17 for other scenarios).

Teaming As a Scenario #1 BOA Holder we can add any subcontractor 
without "req" (requirement?) for Past Performance because WE 
have the Past Performance? 

As a Scenario 1 BOA Holder you can propose any teammate/subcontractor in Step 3, however 
the Past Performance requirement will be provided in the respective RFP (see the EAGLE 
BOA HOLDERS MEETING 20 MAY 2013 presentation slide 17).

Teaming Regarding Teammates on Attachment #3 - What is the benefit of 
revising your team, vice adding an additional teammate?

It is up to each Offeror to determine what individual advantage there may be to either revising  
or adding teammates.  

Teaming What will be the requirements and turn-around for approved 
subcontractors and would the Government consider providing a 
list of non-approved vice approved?

As stated at the BOA Holder's meeting, the idea of having an approved subcontractors listing 
is in the infant stage of development.  There is no set timeline as to when this idea will/will not 
be executed.  The Government does not anticipate providing a non-approved list.

Teaming When can we add teammates to our BOA after our BOA is 
awarded?

BOA Holders may add teammates to their executed BOAs during the annual opening or when 
special projects/emerging requirements are announced. The specifics are provided to all BOA 
Holders during those times. 

Teaming Would the team consider illustrating the use of team members 
(and/or discussion) with a decision tree?

The Government appreciates the suggestion and is taking this under consideration.  
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Teaming Is the EAGLE Team considering any provisions that will allow a 

BOA Holder to team with another BOA Holder that is not part of 
their approved team members? Our rational is that BOA Holders 
are already approved by the EAGLE Team, therefore, why 
wouldn't they be allowed to team to pursue a particular TO 
regardless if they are on each other's team or not as long as they 
can perform on all functional areas.

See BOA Holder Briefing Slide # 21

Teaming When I submit for a BOA, I was the prime with 5 teammates, I 
requested 4 additional teammembers. When I get ready to submit 
for a Task Order, can I elect to not use one of the 5 original and 
use one of my new 4 teammates?

Yes, you can use any teammate on the approved list.

Teaming How will I know when my teammate list is approved? You will know when it is approved because it will be added to your BOA via a modification.

Teaming How many teammates am I allowed on my BOA? You are allowed 10 teammates to show organizational capability. During the addition phase, 
you may add more teammates to enhance your capability.

Teaming Why is it taking so long to add team members (team approach 
changes) when that team member is already an approved EAGLE 
BOA Holder (Prime)?

The timeline associated with processing team member additions/revisions is a very defined 
process with established steps for completion.  The fact that a requested addition is an 
EAGLE BOA Holder has no bearing on the amount of time that is required to complete the 
process.


